
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ
www.southlakeland.gov.uk 

You are requested to attend a meeting of 
the Lake Administration Committee

on Friday, 13 April 2018, at 10.00 a.m.
in the The Marchesi Centre - Marchesi Centre, Holly Road, 

Windermere  LA23 2AF

Committee Membership
South Lakeland District Council

Roger Bingham
Andrew Butcher

Stan Collins
David Evans
Gill Gardner

Brenda Gray (Vice-Chairman)
John Holmes
Dyan Jones
Mel Mackie

Annie Rawlinson
Vivienne Rees

Sue Sanderson (Chairman)
Graham Vincent

Phil Walker
David Williams
Mark Wilson

Lakes Parish Council
Leslie Johnson Fiona Sparrow Philip Thompson

Windermere Town Council
Kathleen Atkinson

Jennifer Borer
Leith Hallatsch
Adrian Legge

 

Wednesday, 4 April 2018

Debbie Storr, Director of Policy and Resources (Monitoring Officer)

For all enquiries, please contact:- 
Committee Administrator: Committee Services
Telephone: 01539 733333
e-mail: committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk

Public Document Pack

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


AGENDA

Page Nos.
PART I 

1 APOLOGIES 

To receive apologies for absence, if any.

2 MINUTES 5 - 8

To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the 
meeting of the Committee held on 26 January 2018 (copy attached).

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this 
Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct, 
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other 
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s 
Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable 
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.)

Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable 
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as 
any other registrable or other interests.

If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of 
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised 
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

4 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS 

To consider whether the item in Part II of the Agenda should be considered in 
the presence of the press and public.

5 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations 
or present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so before 
the commencement of the meeting.  Information on how to make the application 
can be obtained by viewing the Council’s Website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or 
by contacting the Committee Services Team on 01539 733333.

(1) Questions and Representations

To receive any questions or representations which have been received 
from members of the public.

(2) Deputations and Petitions

To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from 
members of the public.

6 PROGRESS REPORT 9 - 12

To consider an update on progress relating to decisions made at previous 
meetings of the Committee, as at 28 March 2018.

http://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/


7 ENCROACHMENT APPLICATION TOWER WOOD OUTDOOR EDUCATION 
CENTRE 

13 - 34

To consider an application for permission to replace two existing wooden jetties 
and to dredge an area of 190m2 at Tower Wood Outdoor Education Centre.

8 GUIDANCE NOTE REGARDING ENCROACHMENTS 35 - 42

To consider the guidance note regarding encroachments.

PART II 

Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) 
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number) 

9 UPDATE ON COMMERCIAL LEASES AND ANNUAL ENCROACHMENTS 

- Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) 

- Paragraph 5 - Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional 
privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings. 

43 - 50

To update Members on commercial leases and annual encroachments.

10 FERRY NAB UPDATE 

- Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) 

51 - 60

To update Members on the completion of works at Ferry Nab.



This page is intentionally left blank



11
26.01.2018 Lake Administration Committee

LAKE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Lake Administration Committee held in the 
District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House, Kendal, on Friday, 26 January 2018, at 
10.00 a.m.

Present

Councillors

 Sue Sanderson (Chairman)
 

Andrew Butcher
David Evans
Gill Gardner

John Holmes
Dyan Jones

Vivienne Rees

Graham Vincent
David Williams
Mark Wilson

Representing Lakes Parish Council

Leslie Johnson   

Representing Windermere Town Council

Kathleen Atkinson Jennifer Borer Leith Hallatsch

Apologies for absence were received from District Councillors Stan Collins, Brenda Gray 
(Vice-Chairman) and Annie Rawlinson, Lakes Parish Councillors Fiona Sparrow and 
Philip Thompson and Windermere Town Councillor Adrian Legge.

Officers

Una Bell Assistant Committee Services Officer
Frankie Flannigan Lake and Parking Services Officer
Julia Krier Solicitor (Property and Contracts)
Anthea Lowe Solicitor to the Council
Abigail Mann Support Assistant
Dan Millican Solicitor
Simon Rowley Assistant Director Neighbourhood Services
Helen Smith Financial Services Manager
David Sykes Director People and Places

Also in attendance at the meeting were David Haughian (Programme Lead Cumbria County 
Council) and Steve Gaskell (Lake District National Park Authority Park Management 
Leader).

LA/26 MINUTES 

RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of 
the meeting of the Committee held on 6 October 2017.

Page 5

Item No.2



12
26.01.2018 Lake Administration Committee

LA/27 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised.

LA/28 LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS 

RESOLVED – That the item in Part II of the agenda be dealt with following the exclusion of 
the press and public.

LA/29 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

RESOLVED – That it be noted that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions 
have been received in respect of this meeting.

LA/30 PROGRESS REPORT 

The Director People and Places presented a report updating Members on progress made 
on decisions taken at previous meetings of the Committee. He advised the Committee that 
as part of the delivery of the new Windermere Lake Action Plan there would be revision of 
the stakeholder engagement arrangements. 

The Director People and Places informed the Committee that the Lakes User Forum was 
likely to become an independent body and would seek recognition in the Windermere Lake 
Action Plan. A revised engagement protocol was to be developed between the Lake District 
National Park Authority, South Lakeland District Council and the Lake Users Forum which 
would be informed by the Forum’s revised terms of reference and constitution.

With regard to the works at Ferry Nab Boathouse, the Committee was advised that the final 
stage of remedial works to the floor gradients was due to be completed, and the shower 
block fully operational by the end of February. Members requested further details regarding 
the timescale of the remedial work and the cost to South Lakeland District Council.  The 
Director People and Places agreed to review the report, which had previously been brought 
to Committee, to liaise with the Chairman and, if there was additional relevant information, 
to provide a summation to all Members of the Committee.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

LA/31 2018/19 TO 2022/23 DRAFT BUDGET 

The Financial Services Manager presented the latest draft Lake Windermere revenue 
budgets for 2018/19. These would form part of the overall Draft Revenue Budget which was 
due to be presented to Council for consideration and approval on 27 February 2018.

In response to a question regarding the increase in the 2017/18 approved premises budget 
and the current 2017/18 premises budget, the Financial Services Manager agreed to 
provide a written answer to all Members of the Committee. 

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.  

LA/32 WINDERMERE FERRY TICKET SALES SYSTEM 

The Director People and Places presented a report from Cumbria County Council (CCC) 
detailing the proposals of its Cabinet-led review of the ticket sales system at Windermere 
Ferry in order to enable the Lake Administration Committee to submit a response. 

Page 6



13
26.01.2018 Lake Administration Committee

David Haughian, Programme Lead Cumbria County Council, addressed the Committee and 
explained that, in December 2017, Cumbria County Council had published the report which 
outlined the findings and recommendations of the Cabinet-led review. Mr Haughian 
highlighted the key considerations of the review and provided a summary of the proposals. 
He confirmed that CCC was keen to engage with all stakeholders and to understand their 
views prior to implementing any further changes. 

Mr Haughian provided clarification on a number of issues which included details on the pre-
purchasing of tickets and the reliability of the network signal on the Lake, a clear 
explanation of the payment options on the ferry and information relating to the testing of the 
proposed technology. He confirmed that CCC had consulted with other ferry providers to 
learn from their experiences. Further information regarding a documented risk assessment 
was requested. 

RESOLVED – That

(1)  the Director People and Places, in consultation with the Chairman, be authorised to 
submit a response to Cumbria County Council, taking into account the comments raised by 
the Committee; and

(2) Councillor Dyan Jones be nominated to represent the Lake Administration 
Committee at the County Council’s engagement session on Friday 9 February 2018.

LA/33 WINDERMERE LAKE WARDENS AND RANGERS ANNUAL REPORT 2016-2017 

The Lake and Parking Services Officer presented the Windermere Lake Wardens and 
Rangers Annual Report 2016/17. He stated that the Wardens and Rangers continued to 
work together successfully from the joint base at Ferry Nab. He highlighted the mooring 
statistics as outlined in the report and the success of the water safety talks which had been 
given to 14 primary schools in the South Lakeland area. 

Steve Gaskell, Lake District National Park Authority Park Management Leader, explained 
that the Team continued to record all interactions with Lake users. The number of 
navigation offences had increased slightly, however, there had been a decrease in the 
number of registration offences recorded. 

The Lake and Parking Services Officer responded to questions regarding the Incident 
Analysis statistics relating to sink/sunk and adrift/ashore vessels.

In response to a question regarding the decline in mooring and slipway usage, the Lake 
and Parking Services Officer explained that the use of the Lake was changing, boats were 
getting bigger and that Lake users preferred berths and services.

The Lake and Parking Services Officer advised that the unlettable mooring figures would be 
removed from the 2017/18 report and this would provide the Committee with a more 
realistic letting statistics.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

Page 7



14
26.01.2018 Lake Administration Committee

LA/34 APPLICATION TO DREDGE IN THE AREA OF PLOT 1, SOUTH OF GREY GABLES, 
STORRS 

The Lake and Parking Services Officer presented a report which requested the Committee 
to consider an application to dredge an area of 200m2 to a depth of 1.5m in the area of Plot 
1 south of Grey Gables, Storrs. He explained that planning permission had been granted 
and Environment Agency approval had also been received. The Committee was also 
informed that the material removed from the Lake bed would be checked for fish and other 
aquatic species and they would be returned to the water immediately.

RESOLVED – That the application for permission to dredge an area of 200m2 to a depth of 
1.5m at Plot 1 south of Grey Gables, Storrs, be approved.

LA/35 PRESS AND PUBLIC 

RESOLVED - That, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds 
that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 
12 A of the Act as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) 
Order 2006 by virtue of the paragraphs indicated.

LA/36 UPDATE ON COMMERCIAL LEASES AND ENCROACHMENTS

- Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information)

- Paragraph 5 - Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could 
be maintained in legal proceedings.

The Solicitor to the Council presented a report which provided Members with an update 
regarding commercial leases and annual encroachments around the Lake and the current 
position in relation to debt recovery actions. Progress on debt recovery had been 
maintained and significant reductions had been made since the previous report. The 
Committee was informed that a report would be presented at the next Committee meeting 
regarding proposals for longer term encroachment agreements. 

Members expressed their thanks to the Legal Team and the former Task and Finish Group 
for their work in achieving the continued reduction in outstanding debts.

RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

LA/37 RE-ADMISSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

RESOLVED – That the press and public be re-admitted to the meeting.

The meeting ended at 11.42 a.m.

Page 8



LAKE ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE

PROGRESS REPORT: as at 28th March 2018

Minute 
no.

Report Title Committee
Date

Progress Due date Officer

LA/21 Lake User Forum 
Engagement 
Protocol

5 October 
2012

 A revised engagement protocol is to be developed 
between the LDNPA, SLDC and the Forum, informed 
by the Forum’s revised terms of reference and 
constitution.

This is an 
ongoing 
item

David 
Sykes

LA/21 Windermere Lake 
Action Plan 2017-
2022

6th October 
2017

 Action Plan Steering Group to be appointed in the 
new Municipal Year.

 Officer Delivery Group being established and 
undertaking delivery planning.

Committee 
Appointment 
to Steering 
Group – 
Lake 
Administrati
on 
Committee 
29th June 
2018

David 
Sykes

LA/32 Windermere 
Ferry Ticket 
System

26 January 
2018

 Letter sent to CCC 29th January 2018 – (Copy 
attached for Members’ information – Appendix A)

Complete David 
Sykes

P
age 9

Item
 N

o.6



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 10



Appendix A

Page 11



Page 12



South Lakeland District Council 
Lake Administration Committee 

13th April 2018
Encroachment Application to replace the two 

existing jetties and dredge an area of 190m2 at 
Tower Wood Outdoor Education Centre 

Windermere
 

PORTFOLIO: Not Applicable 

REPORT FROM: David Sykes – Director People and Places 

REPORT AUTHOR: Frankie Flannigan – Lake and Parking Services 
Officer 

WARDS: Staveley- in- Cartmel 

KEY DECISION: Not Applicable 

 
1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME 
1.1 That approval be given to an application for permission to replace the two 

existing wooden jetties and dredge an area of 190m2 at the Tower Wood 
Outdoor education Centre

2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
2.1 It is recommended that approval be given to the application subject to 

the applicant agreeing to a revised encroachment agreement. 
 
3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS 
3.1 Situated on the east shore of Lake Windermere. Tower Wood offers a wide 

range of outdoor education courses and is owned by Lancashire County 
Council (See appendix 5).

3.2      The application provides details of the proposed replacement of the two 
existing decaying timber jetties with an EZ Dock system which uses floating 
modular dock sections linked by hinged gangways all anchored by circular 
steel piles (See appendices 6 and 7).

Page 13

Item No.7



3.3 The application provides details of the construction of two new jetties. The 
north jetty measuring 28.850 m2 with a width of 2m2, Southern most jetty 
22.370 m2 with a width of 2m2 both measurements are subject to survey 
following completion. This will increase the original encroachment by 8.9m2 to 
an overall encroachment area of 90.2m2 (see appendix 6). 

3.4      The applicant has provides details of the dredging which will cover an area of 
approximately 190m2 and to achieve a 1m nominal depth. At the moment 
larger craft cannot land at jetties due to the build-up of silt. The dredging 
material will be used to build a wash wall to improve the flow of water from 
burrow Beck (see appendix 8).

3.5   The applicant has provided confirmation of the approved planning permission 
by the Lake District National Park Authority and a copy is attached for 
reference.  Environment Agency approval has also been received (see 
appendices 1 and 2). 

3.6 

4.0 CONSULTATION 

4.1 Informal consultation has taken place with the Lake Wardens. The Lake and 
Parking Services Officer is also in possession of the relevant planning 
permissions and Environment Agency approvals.  

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 
5.1 The Committee could decide to refuse the application however this action is 

not recommended.  The existing jetties are in very poor condition and are in 
dire need of replacement. The existing lake levels in this area if not dealt with 
could risk in reduction of water activities and possibly the end of these 
activities. The Lake and Parking Services Officer has visited the site with the 
Lake Wardens and they are both content with the location and proposed jetty 
length.   

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES 
6.1 Not applicable. 

7.0 IMPLICATIONS 
7.1 Financial and Resources 
7.1.1 An amendment to the existing encroachment commercial agreement will be 

required and as the proposed extension will increase the extent of the leased 
demise an increased rental will be achieved. 

7.2 Human Resources 
7.2.1  There are no staff implications. 

7.3 Legal 
7.3.1 Legal services will be required to complete the encroachment agreement 

following confirmation of agreed terms by LSH. 

Page 14



7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental 
7.4.1 

Have you completed and Health, 
Social, Economic and Environmental 
Impact Assessment? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

A sustainability impact assessment 
has not been carried out as this is an 
individual application which has 
already been granted planning 
permission and Environment agency 
consent. 

7.5 Equality and Diversity 
7.5.1. 

Have you completed an Equality 
Impact Analysis? 

Yes ☐ No ☒ 

If yes, please confirm that it is 
attached to the report in the 
appendices. 

Yes ☐ No ☐ 

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons. 

A sustainability impact assessment 
has not been carried out as this is an 
individual application which has 
already been granted planning 
permission and Environment agency 
consent. No equality or diversity 
implications arise out of this proposal. 

7.6 Risk 
Risk Consequence Controls required 

That the Committee 
refuse the application. 

It is likely that this would 
be challenged by the 
applicant. There is also a 
risk that the water borne 
activities are greatly 
reduced or cease 
altogether

 

Approve the 
construction of the 
jetties and dredging as 
detailed.  The Lake and 
Parking Services Officer 
and Lake Wardens are 
both content with the 
application submitted. 

Page 15



CONTACT OFFICERS 
Report Author - – Frankie Flannigan, Lake and Parking Services Officer, Phone  
01539796165, f.flannigan@southlakeland.gov.uk 
APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT 

Appendix No. 

1 Planning decision notice 

2 Notification of Environment Agency consent 

3 Application for encroachment 

4 Application for dredging

5 Location Plan 

6 Proposed existing and extent jetty plan 

7 Proposed jetties drawings

8 Proposed dredging plan

9 Environmental method statement 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS AVAILABLE 
N/A 

TRACKING INFORMATION 
Assistant 
Director 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Solicitor to the 
Council 

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee 

27/3/2018 N/A 27/03/2018 N/A N/A 

Executive 
(Cabinet) 

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer 

Monitoring 
Officer 

N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager 

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s) 

N/A N/A 

Page 16



Appendix 1 

 

 

Page 17



Page 18



Appendix 2  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



 

 

 

 

Page 20



Appendix 3 

 

Page 21



 

 

 

Page 22



Appendix 4 

 

 

Page 23



 

 

 

Page 24



Appendix 5 

 

 

Page 25



Page 26



Appendix 6 

 

 

Page 27



Page 28



Appendix 7 

 

 

Page 29



Page 30



Appendix 8

 

 

Page 31



Page 32



Appendix 9 

 

Page 33



 

Page 34



1

South Lakeland District Council
Lake Administration Committee

Friday, 13 April 2018
Guidance Note regarding encroachments

PORTFOLIO: Cllr Sue Sanderson

REPORT FROM: Assistant Director Resources (Section 151 Officer)

REPORT AUTHOR: Anthea Lowe

WARDS: All Wards surrounding Lake Windermere

FORWARD PLAN: Not applicable

1.0 EXPECTED OUTCOME
1.1 This report will provide members with information that will allow them to reach a 

decision as to whether or not to adopt the guidance note attached at Appendix A 
which sets out the steps to be taken should a customer wish to have an annual 
commercial encroachment recorded as an annual residential encroachment.

2.0 RECOMMENDATION
2.1 It is recommended that Lake Administration Committee:-

(1) Approve for adoption the guidance note attached at Appendix A of this 
report; and

(2) Delegate authority to the Director (Policy & Resources) and Solicitor to 
the Council to make minor amendments to the guidance for the purpose 
of adding clarity or to reflect any changes in legislation.

3.0 BACKGROUND AND PROPOSALS
3.1 Members will recall that discussions have taken place regarding the need to have a 

process by which those encroachments that are recorded as annual commercial 
encroachments can be updated so that they are recorded as annual residential 
encroachments.  

3.2 The guidance note attached at Appendix A sets out the proposed steps to be taken 
by customers who wish to apply to have their encroachments changed to residential 
and the evidence needed to support such an application.

4.0 CONSULTATION
4.1 Members of Lake Administration Committee have previously confirmed a wish for this 

guidance to be produced.

4.2 Lambert Smith Hampton, as the Council’s property advisors and those who would 
deal with such matters have been consulted and the attached guidance reflects their 
comments.

Page 35

Item No.8



2

5.0 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS
5.1 It is open to Members not to adopt the attached guidance.  This is not recommended 

as it will lead to a lack of clarity and consistency when dealing with such matters in 
the future.

6.0 LINKS TO COUNCIL PRIORITIES
6.1 This report links to the values set out in the Council Plan by demonstrating that we 

are listening to our customers, seeking continuous improvement in what we do and 
being efficient and transparent in our dealings with the public.

7.0 IMPLICATIONS
7.1 Financial and Resources
7.1.1 As there are different rates charged for annual commercial and annual residential 

encroachments, there may be a small financial impact arising out of any changes to 
the recording of annual encroachments.  It is not possible, at this stage, to assess the 
likely extent of such impact but it is expected to be small.

7.2 Human Resources
7.2.1 There will be a need for LSH to ensure that there are adequate resources in place to 

deal with any applications received.  Again, this is expected to be small.

7.3 Legal
7.3.1 There are no legal implications associated with this report.

7.4 Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4.1

Have you completed and Health, Social, 
Economic and Environmental Impact 
Assessment?

Yes ☐ No X

If yes, please confirm that it is attached 
to the report in the appendices.

Yes ☐ No ☐

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons.

The proposals contained in this report are 
expected to have a positive impact on 
such matters.

7.5 Equality and Diversity
7.5.1

Have you completed an Equality Impact 
Analysis?

Yes ☐ No ☐

If yes, please confirm that it is attached 
to the report in the appendices.

Yes ☐ No ☐

If you have not completed an Impact 
Assessment, please explain your 
reasons.

It is expected that the proposals 
contained in this report will have a neutral 
impact.

7.6 Risk
Risk Consequence Controls required
That no process will be in There will be a lack of Adopting the guidance 

Page 36



3

Risk Consequence Controls required
place to deal with requests 
to change from 
commercial to residential 
encroachments.

clarity and consistency in 
how the Council 
addresses such matters.

attached will ensure that 
such matters are dealt 
with effectively.

CONTACT OFFICERS
Report Author – Anthea Lowe – Solicitor to the Council, 01539 793305 

APPENDICES ATTACHED TO THIS REPORT *
Appendix No.
1 Guidance Note

TRACKING INFORMATION
Assistant 
Director

Committee 
Chair

Solicitor to the 
Council

SMT Scrutiny 
Committee

27 March 2018 27 March 2018 Report Author N/A N/A

Executive 
(Cabinet)

Committee Council Section 151 
Officer

Monitoring 
Officer

N/A 13 April 2018 N/A 27 March 2018 27 March 2018

Human 
Resource 
Services 
Manager

Leader Ward 
Councillor(s)

Comms Team

N/A N/A N/A 27 March 2018

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 38



Introduction

1. South Lakeland District Council (“the Council”) is the owner of the bed of Lake Windermere.  
Anyone who wishes to erect any building or other structure, or attach any other object 
which encroaches over the Council’s land (“the Encroachment”) will need to apply to the 
Council for consent and will be required to pay a fee (to be calculated based upon the size of 
the Encroachment).

2. There are a number of different types of encroachment:-

i) Annual Residential – this is any Encroachment used by a Customer who is occupying 
their property on a normal residential basis and whose use of the Encroachment is 
subject to an annually renewable agreement.

ii) Annual Commercial – this is any Encroachment used by a Customer who is using 
their property for any commercial basis irrespective of whether or not the operation 
generates an income.  This includes, but is not limited to, properties such as guest 
houses, management companies, business operations, charities and properties held 
in a trust.  Again, the use of such Encroachment is subject to an annually renewable 
agreement.

iii) Commercial (long term) – these Encroachments are used by Customers who operate 
a commercial business (again, irrespective of profit) and the use of the 
Encroachment is governed by an agreement which extends beyond one year.  These 
are outside the scope of this guidance note.

3. This guide is intended to set out the process to be followed should a customer using an 
Annual Commercial Encroachment believe that they should properly be treated as an Annual 
Residential Encroachment and they wish to apply to the Council to have this reviewed.

Application process

4. Any customer who believes that their Annual Commercial Encroachment should properly be 
treated as an Annual Residential Encroachment will need to make an application in writing 
to the Council’s property agents at the address below:-

Lambert Smith Hampton
Suite 1
Cumbria Tourism Building
Windermere Road
Staveley
LA8 9PL

5. The application will need to contain the following:-

i) Applicant’s name (or names if more than one);
ii) Applicant’s address;
iii) The date of the application;

Appendix 1

Page 39



iv) Property address (if different to the Applicant’s address);
v) An explanation as to why the Applicant believes the Encroachment should be 

treated as an Annual Residential Encroachment rather than an Annual Commercial 
Encroachment; and

vi) Appropriate evidence to support the application (see more on this below).

6. Lambert Smith Hampton will send an acknowledgement letter within 7 working days of 
receipt of an application.  They will then review the application to ensure all relevant 
information has been provided and, if any further information is needed, will write to the 
Applicant to request this.  

7. Once a full application has been received, Lambert Smith Hampton will submit it for 
consideration by the Lake Administration Committee of South Lakeland District Council (“the 
Committee”).  The Committee meets on approximately quarterly basis.  

8. The Committee can make one of three decisions:-

i) It can approve the application.  In this case, the updated charging rates will apply 
form the 1st day of the following month.

ii) It can refuse the application.  In this case, the charging rates will remain unchanged.
iii) It can defer the application to the next meeting (usually so that further information 

can be obtained).  In this case, the Applicant will be required to continue making 
payments at the existing rate.

9. Once the application has been considered by the Committee, Lambert Smith Hampton will 
write to the Applicant to confirm the decision made within 7 working days of receipt of the 
Committee decision.  If the application is approved, the charging rates will be updated from 
the 1st day of the month following the decision date and an updated invoice will be supplied.  
If the application is approved, under no circumstances will the charging rate be backdated.  
If the application is refused, the charging rates will remain unchanged.

10. The decision of the Committee is final and there is no right of appeal.  An Applicant cannot 
submit a further application for a period of 12 calendar months.

Evidence

11. As stated above, every application must be accompanied by adequate evidence to support 
the fact that the Encroachment should be treated as an Annual Residential Encroachment.  
The purpose of such evidence is to support the fact that the property and Encroachment is 
being used as a normal residential dwelling.

12. Although each application will vary, the following documents are likely to be required in 
support of an application:-

i) Council Tax bill showing the property is treated as a residential property (not a 
holiday home or guest house);

Page 40



ii) Personal bank statements addressed to the property address;
iii) Utility bills addressed to the Applicant or householder at the property address;
iv) Company/Trust accounts showing the registered office address (different to the 

property address) – this may be relevant in cases where a Company/Trust has 
vacated a property and it is now in residential use;

v) Company/Trust bank statements (addressed to a property other than the one 
benefitting from the Encroachment);

vi) Details of who occupies the property as a residential dwelling (supported by Council 
Tax bill, bank statement, utility bills as necessary); and

vii) Signed statutory declaration confirming that the property is in residential use only 
and setting out the dates and circumstances of such use.

13. The Council reserves the right to make its own enquiries into the use of any property or to 
instruct its agents to do so on its behalf.

Review of guidance

14. This guidance was approved by the Committee on XXXXXXXX.  It will be reviewed by the 
Monitoring Officer or Solicitor to the Council on an annual basis.  The Monitoring Officer and 
Solicitor to the Council have the delegated authority to make minor amendments.  Any 
substantial changes will be reported to the Committee for approval.

Date Version
XXXXXXXX 1.0

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



Document is Restricted

Page 43

Item No.9
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 49

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 5 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 51

Item No.10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Progress Report
	Progress Report as at 28 March 2018 - Appendix A

	7 Encroachment Application Tower Wood Outdoor Education Centre
	Encroachment Application Tower Wood Outdoor Education Centre -  Appendices 1-9
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	8 Guidance Note Regarding Encroachments
	Appendix A

	9 Update on Commercial Leases and Annual Encroachments
	Update on Commercial Leases and Annual Encroachments - Appendix A

	10 Ferry Nab Update



